
AGENDA 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ANNUAL MEETING 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 13, 2024 – 10:00 AM 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY ON ZOOM AND IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REGISTERING FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO THIS MEETING  

AND FOR SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LOCATED ON THE PAGE 

FOLLOWING THE AGENDA 

AGENDA 

I. Roll Call

II. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of July 16, 2024

III. Executive Director’s Report

IV. Administrative Matters

A. Resolution Approving Board Committee Charter

V. Property Dispositions

A. Development – Affordable Housing (unsolicited)
1. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Hughes Housing LLC to

develop eight (8) ten (10) single-family homeownership units in the Third (3rd)
Council District. The units will each be two stories, with an unfinished basement,
containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,370
square feet each. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100%
of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to
a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project.

• 3731* and 3940* Aspen Street, 3936* and 3959 Brown Street; 3958* Parrish
Street; 3900 and 3972* Reno Street; 773* Sloan Street; and 855* and 857 N.
43rd Street (CD 3) (*denotes properties being transferred by the City of
Philadelphia and Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank)

2. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Seamless Development
Group2 LLC to develop ten (10) single-family homeownership units in the Third
(3rd) Council District. The units will each be two stories, without basements,
containing three (3) bedrooms and one and a half (1.5) bathrooms at

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 1 of 189



 

 

approximately 1,350 square feet each. They will be sold to households with 
incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The 
homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key 
Program and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The 
application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An 
EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 3801, 3803, 3811, 3814*, 3816*, 3850*, 3852*, 3960*, 3962*, and 3964* Reno 
Street (CD 3) (*denotes properties being transferred by the City of Philadelphia 
and Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

3. TABLED The properties below are proposed for disposition to The Prime 
Corporation of New Jersey, Inc. to develop ten (10) single-family homeownership 
units in the Seventh (7th) Council District. The units will each be two stories, with 
finished basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at 
approximately 1,300 square feet each. They will be sold to households with 
incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The 
homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key 
Program and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The 
application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An 
EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 2407*, 2409, 2411, 2413*, 2415*, 2439, 2441, 2443, 2445, and 2447 N. 6th 
Street (CD 7) (*denotes properties being transferred by the City of Philadelphia 
and Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

4. The property below is proposed for disposition to Levan Alston, Sr. to rehabilitate 
one (1) single-family homeownership unit in the Fourth (4th) Council District. The 
unit will be two stories, with an unfinished basement, containing three (3) 
bedrooms and one (1) bathroom at approximately 1,250 square feet. It will be 
rented to a household with an income at or below 80% of AMI. The property will 
be subject to at thirty (30) year Declaration of Restrictive Covenants assuring 
affordability at or below 80% of AMI. The application was unsolicited and 
evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 3148 N. 24th Street* (CD 4) (*denotes property being transferred by 
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

VI. Public Comment (Old & New Business) 
 
VII. Adjournment      
 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 2 of 189



 

 

 
 

FROM:  Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Senior Counsel 

RE:  Philadelphia Land Bank August 13, 2024, Board Meeting  

Remote Board Meeting Notice, Public Attendance, and Comment Procedures 

DATE:   August 2, 2024 

 

 

The August 2024 Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank”) is 

currently scheduled for Tuesday, August 13, 2024, with the executive session to begin at 9:30 A.M. and 

the meeting to begin at 10:00 A.M or as soon as the Executive Session has ended.  This meeting will be 

held remotely using Zoom webinar.  The meeting is open to public attendees and for public comments and 

questions. 

PLEASE NOTE: To participate in the meeting on your computer, you must register in advance. This 

requirement is necessary to allow us to collect the names of participants as required by law.  Using a 

computer, tablet or smartphone, use the following link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uShnioX9SLuhXBEJVc4utQ 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar.  

Members of the public who join before 10 A.M. will be given access when the meeting begins.   

Webinar ID: 863 4196 8429; Passcode: 433530 

To join the meeting by calling in, dial one of the following numbers:  

+1 267 831 0333 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 205 6099 Passcode: 433530 

The Board agenda and package will be available to view no later than five (5) days prior to the Board 

meeting at https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/.  Public comment and 

questions regarding the matters that are posted on the agenda may be submitted by email prior to the Board 

meeting and/or in person if attending the Board meeting.   

Public Comment BEFORE Board Meeting: 

Email the following information to andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, August 12, 2024: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 

• Contact information (your email address); 

• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and  

• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 

Questions/comments submitted via email by the 3:00 pm deadline will be summarized at the Board meeting, 

answered or addressed to the extent the Board chooses, and attached to the minutes of the meeting.   

(continued on next page) 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 3 of 189

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uShnioX9SLuhXBEJVc4utQ
https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/
mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


 

 

 

Public Comment DURING Board Meeting: 

To submit questions or comments during the Board meeting when public comment on an agenda item is 

requested by the Board Chair, use the “Raise Hand” function at the bottom of the screen.  Questions may 

also be submitted using the “Q&A” function. Q&A submissions will be attached to the minutes of the 

meeting. 

Individuals will be allowed two (2) minutes for public comment per person per agenda item.  

• The Chair reserves the right to limit comments when more than a certain number of people have the 

same comments on the same matter. 

• Staff will assist with timing and muting microphones as needed. 

 

Rules of Conduct: 

• Comments must be related to the specific agenda item in question.  

• There will be no personal attacks or hate speech against anyone, including applicants, staff members, 

Board members or other members of the public.  

 

Recording of Board Meeting: 

If possible, the Board meeting will be recorded and made publicly available within thirty (30) days.  If you 

have a question about an agenda item after the meeting concludes, please submit it to 

andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov with the following information: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 

• Contact information (your email address); 

• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and  

• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 

Land Bank staff will provide a response to the extent possible. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 4 of 189

mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 1 of 145 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

 

JULY 16, 2024 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 

 

 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Tuesday, 

July 16, 2024, via Zoom webinar, of which proper notices were given.  A condensed certified 

transcript of this meeting is attached to these minutes as Exhibit A. 

 

Call to Order 

 

Board Chair Herbert Wetzel called the meeting to order at 10:08 am. 

 

Andrea Imredy Saah, Senior Counsel, made the following announcements: 

 

Today’s Board meeting is being held via an authorized communication device and is being recorded.  

Questions and comments may be made using the Q&A function or by using the “raise hand” 

function.  If you are calling in and not using the Zoom webinar link, you may ask questions or make 

comments by pressing *9 on your phone or using the “raise hand” function.  Please do not use the 

Chat function.  If any member of the public has any issues submitting questions or comments, please 

send an email to Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov.  Please note that all questions and comments received 

by email prior to this meeting or through the Q&A function during the meeting will be included in 

the minutes.  All questions and comments received before this meeting were shared with the Board. 

 

Prior to today’s Public Session, the Board held an Executive Session during which Mr. Rodriguez 

reviewed the agenda, discussed scheduling a Board orientation and discussed the process of 

appointing members to the Board committees. 

 

Item I 

Roll Call 

 

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Darwin Beauvais, Cornelius 

Brown, Nicholas Dema, Andrew Goodman, Maria Gonzalez, Jenny Greenberg, Michael Johns, 

Rebecca Lopez Kriss, Majeedah Rashid and Herbert Wetzel. 

 

Kelvin Jeremiah was experiencing technical difficulties during roll call but joined the meeting at 

10:13 am. 

 

The following Land Management staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Andrea Imredy 

Saah, Esq., Robert Spence, Esq., Karen Anaya, Todd Hestand, Cristina Martinez, Brian Romano, 

Mathen Pullukattu and Carolyn Terry. 

 

Public Attendees: The list of public attendees follow these minutes. 

 

A quorum of Directors was present, and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with 

business. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 5 of 189

mailto:Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov


PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 2 of 145 

Item II 

Approval of Board Minutes 

 

Mr. Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board regarding the minutes of the Board 

meeting of June 11, 2024.  There were none. 

 

Mr. Wetzel called for a motion regarding approval of the minutes. 

 

Mr. Beauvais moved to approve the minutes.  Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the June 11, 2024, Board 

Meeting minutes. 

 

Item III 

Executive Director’s Report 

 

Mr. Rodriguez presented an overview of the report included in the Board package posted online prior 

to the meeting, which described the dispositions which closed for the fiscal year ending June 30, 

2024.  Land Bank disposed of two hundred thirty-one (231) DOR parcels, which included 

approximately three hundred eleven (311) standard lots.  This includes two hundred eighty-eight 

(288) housing lots, which will yield three hundred fifteen (315) housing units. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez also provided an update on the Turn the Key (TTK) program.  Seven hundred twenty-

four (724) total housing units have been approved by the Land Bank Board between fiscal year 2023 

and 2024.  Four hundred sixty (460) of the units are complete or presently under construction. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez talked about the Minority Developer Program (MDP), which Land Bank and PHDC 

started two years ago to promote wealth creation and business growth targeting black and brown 

developers in the City.  There have been two cohorts, the first in January 2022 and the second in 

2023.  Mr. Rodriguez then discussed the MDP proposals which have been approved by the Land 

Bank Board and key employees providing support, including Todd Hestand and Shelvia Williams. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez clarified for the Board that any development with a value of over $100,000, excepting 

gardens, open space, and side yard dispositions, requires an Economic Opportunity Plan (EOP) to be 

approved by the Office of Economic Opportunity (the OEO), which is part of the City’s Commerce 

Department.  The OEO contracts with the Division of Housing and Community Development 

(DHCD) of the City’s Department of Planning and Development to manage the EOP program. EOP 

targets are set by the approved developer and DHCD and approved by the OEO.  DHCD’s 

monitoring and compliance unit is responsible for oversight and compliance and reports to the OEO.  

EOP percentages are based on the total development costs and the contracts issued to general 

contractors, subcontractors, trades people, architects, engineers, and material suppliers.  Developers 

are required to make best efforts to contract with Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) and Women 

Business Enterprises (WBE), and compliance also considers the number of minority, women, and 

resident employees hired by the contractors.  Prior to the Land Bank’s issuance of any Certificate of 

Completion, the Land Bank confirms with the OEO that the developer complied with the EOP.  The 

Land Bank may not divulge any specific compliance statistics, and any request for such statistics 

must be made directly to the OEO.  Ms. Gonzalez and Mr. Goodman requested that more frequent 

updates regarding EOP compliance be made available to the Board. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 6 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 3 of 145 

The full report containing additional details regarding Fiscal Year 2024 dispositions, Turn the Key 

program updates, Minority Developer Program updates, and Economic Opportunity Plan (EOP) 

oversight is attached to these minutes as Exhibit B.  

 

Item IV 

Administrative Matters 

 

IV.A. Approving Board Committee Charters 

 

Mr. Rodriguez requested Board approval for the reorganization of the Board’s standing committees 

and the draft committee charters included in the Board package.  The charters define each committee 

and the committee’s role, structure, meeting frequency, authority and responsibilities. 

 

Ms. Imredy Saah added that the Board has in the past created standing committees, and that, under 

the Bylaws, the Land Bank Treasurer is the Chair of the Finance Committee.  The proposed charters 

propose to combine the former Policy Committee and Strategic Planning Committee into a single 

committee, as the Land Bank is no longer the agency responsible for preparing a strategic plan.  Ms. 

Imredy Saah also noted that committees cannot have more than five members, and a committee 

cannot make any recommendations or decisions.  The charters will remain subject to further revision 

to ensure they are in accordance with the City code and other City directives. 

 

Mr. Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  Mr. Jeremiah asked if the two 

committees on the agenda are the only two committees of the Land Bank Board if approved.  Ms. 

Imredy Saah responded that there is an existing, standing Nominating Committee, whose 

membership is set by the bylaws.  Ms. Imredy Saah noted there is no Audit Committee.  Mr. 

Rodriguez explained this is because the audit is procured by PHDC, although the Finance Committee 

does review the Land Bank’s annual audit, which is then presented to the Board. 

 

Ms. Lopez-Kriss asked Chair Wetzel for clarification regarding the “review and discuss a long-term 

financial plan for the Philadelphia Land Bank” Finance Committee responsibility.  Mr. Wetzel 

acknowledged that the budget will be an annual process as the Land Bank remains primarily funded 

by the City, but provided the example of insurance costs for land held by the Land Bank and how the 

Land Bank could work to minimize its holdings at any given time to reduce those costs.   

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss next asked about expenditures at sheriff’s sales as identified in the Finance 

Committee charter.  Mr. Wetzel clarified that this would be a general review, and not an attempt to 

identify specific parcels for acquisition.  Mr. Rodriguez added that staff would present on a quarterly 

basis to the committee a list of proposed acquisitions, the Council District they are in, and the 

intended use for each acquired property.  The full Board would vote to approve the proposed 

expenditure for the acquisition of those properties. 

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss also asked about the meaning of “Review and discuss the financial aspects of major 

proposed transactions, new programs and services, as well as of proposals to discontinue programs or 

services, for Board action, as appropriate.”  Mr. Rodriguez provided the Germantown Settlement 

properties as an example.  The Land Bank does not typically acquire structures, but due to 

complications with the ability of the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (PRA) to pursue a 

mortgage foreclosure, the Land Bank acquired the property at Sheriff’s sale and entered into an 

agreement under which PRA managed the property and indemnified the Land Bank while the Land 

Bank worked to transfer the property to the PRA. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 7 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 4 of 145 

 

Mr. Wetzel asked if public comment regarding the proposed reorganization and charter adoption was 

received prior to the Board meeting.  There were none. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez acknowledged Jihad Ali.  Mr. Ali requested clarity regarding EOP reporting, the 

applicability of Right to Know to EOP reporting, and whether a committee would be responsible for 

EOP oversight.  Mr. Rodriguez described the division of responsibilities between the Land Bank, the 

Division of Housing and Community Development in the City’s Department of Planning and 

Development, and the Office of Economic Opportunity, which is housed in the City’s Commerce 

Department.  Ms. Imredy Saah clarified that the Land Bank only receives confirmation that a 

developer has met its requirements under the EOP prior to issuing the Certificate of Completion and 

does not receive specific information regarding how the developer fulfilled the requirements.  Ms. 

Imredy Saah stated the Land Bank fully complies with the Right To Know Act, and that the Right To 

Know Act has a number of exceptions which could except publication of the EOP reporting if the 

Land Bank were to receive it.  Ms. Lopez Kriss shared that the Office of Economic Opportunity does 

publish an annual report that should be available publicly on the Commerce Department’s website or 

able to be requested.  The questions and comments can be found in full on pages 28 to 32 of the 

attached transcript. 

 

Mr. Wetzel called for a motion. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah moved to approve the resolution.  Ms. Lopez Kriss seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution Approving 

Reorganization of Standing Committees and Adopting Charters for Finance Committee and 

for Policy and Planning Committee (attached to these minutes as Exhibit C). 

 

Item V 

Property Dispositions 

 

V.A. Development – Assemblage (unsolicited) 

 

Mr. Rodriguez requested the Board’s approval to convey 5307 Market Street in the Third (3rd) 

Council District to Kifleye LLC, the owner of 5301, 5303 and 5305 Market Street.  The applicant 

proposes to develop a mixed-use apartment building containing four (4) ground-floor retail spaces 

and twelve (12) market-rate apartments on the two (2) upper floors.  The application was unsolicited 

and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy.  An EOP plan will apply for this project. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. 

 

Mr. Johns stated his belief that the site plans do not match the renderings and that the design does not 

match the block, and that he believes consistent plans should be a requirement. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah asked how the property is currently being used.  Mr. Rodriguez stated it is a vacant lot. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if the applicant owned adjacent property.  Ms. Imredy Saah answered that the 

applicant owns three adjacent parcels. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 8 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 5 of 145 

Mr. Jeremiah asked if the Land Bank policy requires Councilmanic support.  Mr. Rodriguez replied 

that it does not. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. Imredy Saah 

replied that Eloise Young, RCO Facilitator for HMC Squared Community Association, wrote in 

strong support of the project.  The letter is attached to the minutes as Exhibit D. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none. 

 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Dema seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved the Resolution Authorizing Conveyance 

of 5307 Market Street to Kifleye LLC (attached to these minutes as Exhibit E) by a vote of ten (10) 

to one (1).  Mr. Beauvais, Mr. Brown, Mr. Dema, Ms. Gonzalez, Ms. Greenberg, Mr. Jeremiah, Mr. 

Johns, Ms. Lopez Kriss, Ms. Rashid and Chair Wetzel voted in favor of the resolution.  Mr. Goodman 

voted against the resolution. 

 

V.B. Development – Affordable Housing (unsolicited) 

 

Mr. Goodman recused himself from the meeting for items V.B. 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, since he was involved 

in assisting the developers as they prepared their applications to the Land Bank in his role as Director 

of Equitable Development for 3rd District City Councilmember Gauthier.  Mr. Goodman’s recusal 

letter is attached to the minutes as Exhibit F. 

 

V.B.1. 

Mr. Rodriguez introduced Todd Hestand, Senior Development Specialist, who requested the Board’s 

approval to convey 3833 and 3915 Brown Street; 735 N. DeKalb Street; 3605 Melon Street; 3517 

Mount Vernon Street; 524 N. 35th Street; 740 and 765 N. 38th Street; and 839 N. 39th Street in the 

Third (3rd) Council District to BLA Holdings LLC.  The applicant proposes to develop nine (9) 

single-family homeownership units.  The units will each be two (2) stories, with an unfinished 

basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,100 square feet 

each.  They will be sold to households with incomes at or below one hundred percent (100%) of AMI 

for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood 

Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive 

Covenants.  The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy.  An 

EOP plan will apply to this project. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. 

 

Mr. Johns stated he believes the design does not meet the contextual requirements of the 

neighborhood. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez asked how the proposal fits within the context of the neighborhood.  Mr. Hestand 

responded that the UDA executive team worked with Councilwoman Gauthier’s office to review the 

architectural plans.  Where any conflict or obvious discrepancy was identified, those parcels were 

removed from the application.  UDA also encourages the developers to look at parcels block by block 

in the neighborhoods, both during the day and at night, to ensure the proposal fits the neighborhood. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 9 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 6 of 145 

 

Mr. Dema left the meeting at 11:01 am. 

 

Mr. Johns is concerned that the Board is seeing the same or very similar plans for multiple projects, 

and that he believes better layouts are possible. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah seconded Mr. Johns’ concerns and also shared his concerns about unsolicited 

applications. 

 

Chair Wetzel stated the Policy and Planning Committee will look into what the Land Bank can and 

cannot do regarding context and unit size. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting. 

 

Ms. Imredy Saah replied that Councilwoman Gauthier wrote in support of items V.B. 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, 

citing this as a chance to achieve multiple benefits at once. Her letter is attached to the minutes as 

Exhibit G. 

 

A letter was also received from Rick Young, one of the founders of Urban Developers Association, 

who expressed his strong support for BLA Holdings, LLC and their proposal to develop nine homes. 

 

David Langlieb, Executive Director of the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, also wrote in strong 

support of BLA Holdings' application in the 3rd District. 

 

Mantua Civic Association also sent a letter wholeheartedly supporting the proposal and urging the 

Board to approve the disposition. 

 

The individual support letters for this project are attached in full to the minutes as Exhibit H. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Mohamed Rushdy.  Mr. Rushdy thanked Mr. Rodriguez and Mr. Hestand 

for their support of the Minority Developers Program.  Mr. Rushdy spoke in support of this project 

and the other four UDA projects on the agenda. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized David Langlieb.  Mr. Langlieb, with the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, 

expressed his strong support for BLA and all the dispositions from UDA and Black Squirrel 

participants under consideration by the Land Bank at this meeting. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Mr. Jihad Ali.  Mr. Ali would like more information but spoke in support 

of the application. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Michael Tomasetti.  Mr. Tomasetti, on behalf of Civetta Property Group, 

stated his support of the project and the UDA. 

 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion. 

 

Mr. Brown moved to approve the disposition.  Ms. Greenberg seconded the motion. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 10 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 7 of 145 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 3833 Brown Street, 3915 Brown Street, 735 N. Dekalb Street, 3605 

Melon Street, 3517 Mount Vernon Street, 524 N. 35th Street, 740 N. 38th Street, 765 N. 38th 

Street, and 839 N. 39th Street to BLA Holdings LLC (attached to these minutes as Exhibit I). 

 

V.B.2. 

Mr. Hestand requested the Board’s approval to convey 3914, 3917, 3927, 3935, 3936-38, 3937, 3940, 

3946 and 3948 Folsom Street in the Third (3rd) Council District to Gil Property Group LLC.  The 

applicant proposes to develop ten (10) single-family homeownership units.  The units will each be 

two (2) stories, with a finished basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at 

approximately 1,455 square feet each.  They will be sold to households with incomes at or below one 

hundred percent (100%) of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible 

for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a 

Declaration of Restrictive Covenants.  The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the 

disposition policy.  An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. Imredy Saah 

stated letters of support were received from Councilwoman Gauthier, Rick Young of the Urban 

Developers Association, David Langlieb of the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, and the Mantua Civic 

Association, all with similar content as their previously described letters.  All letters are attached in 

full to the minutes as Exhibit G and Exhibit J. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none. 

 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion. 

 

Mr. Johns moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Beauvais seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 3914, 3917, 3927, 3935, 3936-38, 3937, 3940, 3946 and 3948 Folsom 

Street to Gil Property Group LLC (attached to these minutes as Exhibit K). 

 

V.B.3. 

Mr. Hestand requested the Board’s approval to convey 3539 Aspen Street; 3624 Brown Street; 610, 

612, and 614 N. Shedwick Street; 3405, 3830 and 3832 Wallace Street; 682 N. 33rd Street; and 620 

N. 35th Street in the Third (3rd) Council District to Northwest Development Group LLC.  The 

applicant proposes to develop ten (10) single-family homeownership units.  The units will each be 

two (2) stories, with an unfinished basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at 

approximately 1,200 square feet each.  They will be sold to households with incomes at or below one 

hundred percent (100%) of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible 

for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a 

Declaration of Restrictive Covenants.  The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the 

disposition policy.  An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. There were none. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 11 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 8 of 145 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. Imredy Saah 

stated letters of support were received from Councilwoman Gauthier, Rick Young of the Urban 

Developers Association, David Langlieb of the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, and the Mantua Civic 

Association, all with similar content as their previously described letters.  All letters are attached in 

full to the minutes as Exhibit G and Exhibit L. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Jihad Ali.  Mr. Ali asked if Jordan Parisse was affiliated with this project.  

Mr. Hestand responded in the affirmative.  Mr. Ali then stated his support for the project. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez next recognized Isaac Badush.  Mr. Badush’s company purchased 620 N. 35th Street 

from a company which acquired it from the PRA, but the PRA revested ownership.  Mr. Badush 

wanted to know if he could acquire the property at this time. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked Mr. Rodriguez if the property was unencumbered and in the inventory.  Mr. 

Rodriguez stated the property is unencumbered and available.  The previous developer and this 

developer defaulted on the agreement with the PRA and did not reach an agreement to cure the 

default. 

 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion. 

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Beauvais seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 3539 Aspen Street, 3624 Brown Street, 610 N. Shedwick Street, 612 

N. Shedwick Street, 614 N. Shedwick Street, 3405 Wallace Street, 3830 Wallace Street, 3832 

Wallace Street, 682 N. 33rd Street, and 620 N. 35th Street to Northwest Development Group 

LLC (attached to these minutes as Exhibit M). 

 

V.B.4. 

Mr. Hestand requested the Board’s approval to convey 3841 and 3843 Melon Street; 3858 Mount 

Vernon Street; 642, 647 and 658 Union Street; and 3903, 3905, 3907 and 3930 Wallace Street in the 

Third (3rd) Council District to Project IV LLC.  The applicant proposes to develop ten (10) single-

family homeownership units.  The units will each be two (2) stories, with an unfinished basement, 

containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,375 square feet each.  They 

will be sold to households with incomes at or below one hundred percent (100%) of AMI for a 

maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation 

Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants.  The 

application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy.  An EOP plan will apply 

to this project. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. 

 

Mr. Johns commented that he does not believe the design fits within the context of each street in the 

proposal. 

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss asked why the plans in many of the units are nearly identical. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 12 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 9 of 145 

 

Chair Wetzel responded that economies of scale are the likely cause, and rebuilding the structures 

that used to stand on the sites would almost certainly make the homes unaffordable. 

 

Mr. Johns expressed his desire for someone to identify a way to make the homes more contextual 

without sacrificing affordability. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez expressed her desire to increase affordable housing in a way that is respectful to the 

community. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah wants the Land Bank Board to examine neighborhood context and opined that the 

homes do not look good. 

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss stated that she does not want to be responsible for monitoring taste, but if all other 

homes in the neighborhood have porches and these do not or if the other homes are three (3) stories 

and these are two (2) stories, the Land Bank should examine that. 

 

Chair Wetzel stated this can be one of the first tasks for the Policy and Planning Committee. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. Imredy Saah 

stated letters of support were received from Councilwoman Gauthier, Rick Young of the Urban 

Developers Association, David Langlieb of the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, and the Mantua Civic 

Association, all with similar content as their previously described letters. 

 

Letters of support were also received from Amira Coleman, Compass Realty; Dilvany Arredondo, a 

founder of Connecting the Dots; Kyle Easley with DKP Development Group; Mike Gargiulo·from 

The HOW Group; Shania Smith, homeowner in the neighborhood; and Anthony Bright of Seamless 

Pros.  All were very strongly supportive of this project and of the developer and urged the Board to 

adopt the resolution. 

 

A letter was also received from Shari Gilyard, who is a neighbor, asking the Board to allow one of 

the spaces to be used as a green space.  She is a long-time resident in her home in the area.  Ms. 

Imredy Saah stated that staff did check whether she would be able to acquire the property as a side 

yard, and Ms. Gilyard is not qualified to acquire the property as a side yard because her home is not 

adjacent to the property. 

 

All letters are attached in full to the minutes as Exhibit G and Exhibit N. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Jihad Ali.  Mr. Ali expressed support for the developer and the project.  

Mr. Ali believes the façades can be improved across Land Bank projects. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Alisha Davis.  Ms. Davis stated that although Ms. Gilyard is not qualified 

to purchase a lot, the Board should take her concerns and the context of the neighborhood into 

account. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Mr. Butler.  Mr. Butler thinks the property Ms. Gilyard inquired about 

should not be included in the project. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 13 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 10 of 145 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Brown seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 3841 Melon Street, 3843 Melon Street, 3858 Mount Vernon Street, 

642 Union Street, 647 Union Street, 658 Union Street, 3903 Wallace Street, 3905 Wallace 

Street, 3907 Wallace Street, and 3930 Wallace Street to Project IV LLC (attached to these 

minutes as Exhibit O). 

 

V.B.5. 

Mr. Hestand requested the Board’s approval to convey 3607, 3830 and 3832 Melon Street; 3837, 

3917, 3938, 3940 and 3944 Mount Vernon Street; and 612 Union Street in the Third (3rd) Council 

District to Rosario Estates LLC.  The applicant proposes to develop ten (10) single-family 

homeownership units.  The units will each be two (2) stories, with an unfinished basement, 

containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 1,100 square feet each.  They 

will be sold to households with incomes at or below one hundred percent (100%) of AMI for a 

maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation 

Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants.  The 

application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy.  An EOP plan will apply 

to this project. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. Imredy Saah 

stated letters of support were received from Councilwoman Gauthier, Rick Young of the Urban 

Developers Association, David Langlieb of the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, and the Mantua Civic 

Association, all with similar content as their previously described letters. 

 

Letters were also received from Anthony Rogers, a business owner in the neighborhood; Maridalia 

Gonzalez, long-time resident of the neighborhood; and Matu Threatt, who is also a Philadelphia 

resident supporting this proposed project. 

 

All letters are attached in full to the minutes as Exhibit G and Exhibit P. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none. 

 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion. 

 

Mr. Beauvais moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Jeremiah seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 3607 Melon Street, 3830 Melon Street, 3832 Melon Street, 3837 

Mount Vernon Street, 3917 Mount Vernon Street, 3938 Mount Vernon Street, 3940 Mount 

Vernon Street, 3944 Mount Vernon Street, and 612 Union Street to Rosario Estates LLC 

(attached to these minutes as Exhibit Q). 

 

Mr. Goodman returned to the meeting at this time. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 14 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 11 of 145 

V.B.6. 

Mr. Hestand requested the Board’s approval to convey 2605, 2607, 2608, 2610 and 2622 N. 29th 

Street in the Fifth (5th) Council District to JES Capital Investments LLC (“JES”).  The applicant 

proposes to develop five (5) single-family homeownership units.  The units will each be two (2) 

stories, without a basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at approximately 

1,160 square feet each.  They will be sold to households with incomes at or below one hundred 

percent (100%) of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the 

Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of 

Restrictive Covenants.  The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition 

policy.  An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah asked if Land Bank staff verifies the funding sources or if the sources are only 

proposals. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez responded that Land Bank staff does confirm the validity of the funding sources.  The 

Land Bank requires letters of intent or term sheets.  Applicants must also share bank statements to 

confirm the proposed equity stake is reasonable. 

 

Mr. Johns asked if the applicants generally share one architectural firm.  Mr. Hestand responded that 

each applicant selects their own subcontractors, but he is not aware of all applicants sharing one 

architect.  Mr. Rodriguez added that the applicants likely are discussing these matters, and that they 

may be designing a similar minimum viable product via different architects. 

 

Mr. Johns raised concerns about diversifying the professional services being utilized by the 

applicants. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez noted the plans do not include basements or closets.  Ms. Gonzalez is afraid units may 

sit vacant. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting. 

 

Ms. Imredy Saah stated letters of support were received from Lauren Stebbins from the Barra 

Foundation; Brian Murray from Shift Capital; Aubrielle Kituma; Brandy Ross; Sang Phouansouvanh, 

who is part of Black Squirrel Collaborative's Philly Rise initiative; David Langlieb of the 

Philadelphia Accelerator Fund; Damian Smith of Smith Property Works; Mark Lawson of ReNew 

and also part of the Black Squirrel Collaborative; Kylah Field; Kevin Williams, Black Squirrel 

Collaborative; Bryan Collins, 610Cars; Nadirah Brown; Varsovia Fernandez, with the Pennsylvania 

CFDI Network; Charles Owo; Kyle Schell of Homes Beyond Luxury; Maleda Berhane, AR Spruce; 

Ibraheim Campbell of Soar City; Armond E. Mosley; Ugochukwu Opara, of 215 Development 

Corporation; Kevin Moran, of the Urban Land Institute Philadelphia; Ariel Brown, of A2B 

Consultant Group; Kyle Moore, from Moore Management Group; and Rashod Minor and Keen 

Riley. 

 

Bonita Cummings, of Strawberry Manion Community Concern & RCO, wrote in opposition to the 

disposition. 

 

All letters are attached in full to the minutes as Exhibit R. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 15 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 12 of 145 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah left the meeting at 11:49 am. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Justin Smith, the principal of JES.  Addressing the design, Mr. Smith 

stated there are only so many ways to configure a 1,100-1,300 square foot, three (3) bedroom, two 

(2) bath home, and it’s likely the developers will arrive at similar designs.  Mr. Smith discussed his 

history in the housing industry.  Mr. Smith also discussed how he and his cohort have been in the 

program for nearly two (2) years, only now getting to this step, and he was discouraged that still 

more bottlenecks were being encountered. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez next recognized Bonita Cummings.  Ms. Cummings expressed her displeasure with 

the design and layout, and her belief that Mr. Smith needed to meet with her RCO again.  Ms. 

Cummings’ full comments can be found at pages 78 to 81 of the attached condensed transcript. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Jihad Ali.  Mr. Ali expressed support for the Land Bank adding more 

design requirements. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez next recognized Ugochukwu Opara.  Mr. Opara expressed his support for reusing 

designs and floorplans.  He stated many blocks in Philadelphia are composed of identical homes, and 

that reusing the design is a key component of creating affordability across the City.  Mr. Opara also 

stated the façade is only aesthetics, and that other aspects, such as energy efficiency, should be more 

important when evaluating applications. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Candis Pressley.  Ms. Pressley is a fellow Black Squirrel participant and 

expressed her strong support for JES’s application. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Mo Rushdy.  Mr. Rushdy seconded Mr. Opara’s comments.  Mr. Rushdy 

also expressed his desire for the Board to visit some of the Turn the Key developments, many of 

which re-use designs and floorplans, and for the Board to understand that the homes are quality 

homes. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Adam Butler.  Mr. Butler does not consider it reasonable to live without 

closets and is frustrated that the Board does not acknowledge or incorporate community feedback. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Jayden Parks.  Mr. Parks believes it may be possible to build affordable 

projects with more aesthetic value than is being presented now. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez again recognized Justin Smith.  Mr. Smith stated the bedrooms will have closets, but 

it’s not feasible to keep spending time and money providing drawings with increased detail when he 

is already two years into this project.  Mr. Rodriguez requested clarity regarding updated plans, and 

Mr. Smith agreed to provide updated plans, including closets, upon approval. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez asked Mr. Smith if he had committed to meeting with the community again.  Mr. 

Smith told the community he would follow up with them but did not commit to additional meetings. 

 

Mr. Beauvais asked how many meetings Mr. Smith had with the community and who attended.  Mr. 

Smith responded he had one meeting, and that multiple RCOs attended.  Mr. Beauvais requested 

clarity regarding the meeting requirement.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that applicants are required to 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 16 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 13 of 145 

hold one community meeting and are given a package which outlines the meeting and notice 

requirements.  Mr. Beauvais then asked Mr. Smith if any other RCOs requested a second meeting.  

Mr. Smith replied only Ms. Cummings requested a second meeting. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized David Langlieb.  Mr. Langlieb, with the Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, 

stated one of the reasons it was created was to help developers with pre-development costs, but, even 

so, there is a limit to how much developers can reasonably spend without any assurance their 

application will be approved.  Upon Land Bank approval, the developers are able to access additional 

funding to finalize plans. 

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss asked Mr. Langlieb whether it was common for plans to be updated following Land 

Bank approval. 

 

Mr. Langlieb responded that, yes, certain adjustments are allowable and do occur when the permit 

drawings are created. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez then detailed the entire process between Land Bank Board approval and closing, how 

many things can affect designs, and how L&I still needs to approve plans prior to closing. 

 

Chair Wetzel stated it was time to make a decision and called for a motion. 

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Beauvais seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved the Resolution Authorizing 

Conveyance of 2605, 2607, 2608, 2610 and 2622 N. 29th Street to JES Capital Investments LLC 

(attached to these minutes as Exhibit S) by a vote of six (6) to three (3).  Chair Wetzel, Mr. Beauvais, 

Ms. Rashid, Ms. Lopez Kriss, Mr. Goodman, and Mr. Brown voted in favor of the resolution.  Ms. 

Gonzalez, Ms. Greenberg, and Mr. Johns voted against the resolution.   

 

V.B.7. 

Mr. Hestand requested the Board’s approval to convey 1766, 1768, 1770 and 1772 N. Bodine Street; 

218 Cecil B. Moore Avenue; and 2244 and 2246 Hope Street in the Seventh (7th) Council District to 

Seamless Development LLC.  The applicant proposes to develop seven (7) single-family 

homeownership units.  The units will each be two (2) stories, without a basement, containing three 

(3) bedrooms and one and a half (1.5) bathrooms at approximately 1,100 square feet each.  They will 

be sold to households with incomes at or below one hundred percent (100%) of AMI for a maximum 

sales price of $280,000.  The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s 

Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants.  The application 

was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy.  An EOP plan will apply to this 

project. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting. 

 

Ms. Imredy Saah stated letters of support were received from Kevin Moran, of the Urban Land 

Institute Philadelphia; Kevin Williams, of Black Squirrel collaborative; Lauren Stebbins, of the Barra 

Foundation; Isaac Singleton, of Project IV; Brian Murray, of Schiff Capital; Mark Lawson, of 

ReNew; Damian Smith, of Smith Property Works; David Langlieb, of the Philadelphia Accelerator 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 17 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 14 of 145 

Fund; Ibraheim Campbell, of Soar City Development; Sangkham Phouansouvanh, of PREI Homes; 

Maleda Berhane, of AR Spruce; and Varsovia Fernandez, of PA CDFI Network.  All letters are 

attached in full to the minutes as Exhibit T. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Bonita Cummings.  Ms. Cummings had more to say about Item V.B.6, 

and reiterated her claim that more community meetings should have been held before the Board 

approved the disposition. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Michael Tomasetti.  Mr. Tomasetti, of Civetta Property Group, stated he 

fully supports the applicant. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Will Gonzalez.  Mr. Rodriguez, with Ceiba, stated he met with Mr. Evans 

and Mr. Bright the week prior, and they were amazing people.  Ceiba does not support affordable 

housing, including this project, without associated wrap-around services. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Timour Kamran.  Mr. Kamran, with Norris Square Community Action 

Network, asked if the homes will be offered at 80% AMI.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that the 

maximum price is based on 100% AMI, and that the income of the average Turn the Key purchaser is 

at 57% AMI. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Mo Rushdy.  Mr. Rushdy spoke in support of the applicant. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez again recognized Timour Kamran.  Mr. Kamran asked if any of the units would be 

considered affordable to purchasers at 80% AMI or lower.  Mr. Rodriguez and Chair Wetzel 

provided a number of statistics regarding the Turn the Key sales, including sales prices, forgivable 

mortgage amounts, grants, average mortgage payments, and capped assessments during the life of the 

soft second mortgage. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Robert Merkle.  Mr. Merkle is a resident near the proposed sites who is 

concerned about neighborhood context.  He also attended the community meeting and did not 

consider it useful. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Khalief Evans.  Mr. Evans stated the meeting Mr. Merkle attended was 

not the primary meeting and was held only to accommodate a late request from an RCO.  Mr. Evans 

also stated the façades were designed with neighborhood context in mind. 

 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion. 

 

Mr. Brown moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Beauvais seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 1766 N. Bodine Street, 1768 N. Bodine Street, 1770 N. Bodine 

Street, 1772 N. Bodine Street, 218 Cecil B. Moore Avenue, 2244 Hope Street and 2246 Hope 

Street to Seamless Development LLC (attached to these minutes as Exhibit U). 

 

Mr. Brown left the meeting at 12:46 pm. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 18 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 15 of 145 

V.C. Side/Rear Yards 

 

Mr. Rodriguez requested that the Board authorize the conveyance of 1900 E. Lehigh Avenue in the 

First (1st) Council District to Quay and Mui A.  Phong to be used as a side or rear yard.  The applicant 

is compliant and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia.  The property will be subject to a 30-

year mortgage and permanent use restrictions as a side or rear yard. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  There were none. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public. 

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss asked why a property valued at $75,000 was being sold as a side yard.  Mr. 

Rodriguez responded that the purchaser has been in communication with the 1st District 

Councilmember, and the Councilman supports selling this as a side yard. 

 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez moved to approve the disposition.  Ms. Greenberg seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 1900 E. Lehigh Avenue to Quay Phong and Mui A. Phong (attached 

to these minutes as Exhibit V). 

 

Item VI 

Public Comment (Old & New Business) 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if there was any Old Business that the Board or public would like to discuss. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez recognized Adam Butler.  Mr. Butler, on behalf of Iglesias Gardens, requested an 

update regarding the timing of Iglesias Gardens being able to acquire the land in the application 

approved by the Board in 2020.  Ms. Imredy Saah stated the Land Bank is finalizing the sales 

documentation, she hopes to get the documents to Iglesias Gardens and other garden purchasers in 

August.  Mr. Rodriguez added that the Land Bank is required to harmonize its garden dispositions 

with the City and PRA, and a large part of the delay is getting final approval from the different legal 

departments.  Mr. Goodman asked whether the Land Bank could move forward with Land Bank 

dispositions if the three (3) entities are sufficiently in agreement.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that the 

entire process needs to be finalized and needs to account for the individual requirements of each 

entity, to avoid any potential discrepancies in the processes among the three (3) entities. 

 

Mr. Butler next asked when the Land Bank Board would return to in-person meetings.  Mr. 

Rodriguez stated it is the Land Bank and Board’s intention to return to in-person meetings in 

September. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 19 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 16 of 145 

Item VII 

Adjournment 

 

Seeing no further comments from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel called for a motion to 

adjourn. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez moved to adjourn the meeting, and Ms. Lopez Kriss seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn at 1:01 pm. 

 

NOTE:  Any comments and questions submitted via the Q&A function follow the list of attendees 

attached to these minutes. 

 

 

 

  

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 20 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 17 of 145 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, July 16, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar. 

 

User Name 

A B 
Jamila Davis 

Shelvia Williams 
Eugene Tull 

Damone Jones 
Jacquelyn Sims 

Brennan Tomasetti 
Bonita Cummings 

Jihad Ali 
Britainy Stephens 
Mohamed Rushdy 

Russell Hicks 
David Oliver 
Julian Rios 

Mark Lawson 
Candis Pressley 
David Langlieb 
Thom Webster 
Nilda Pimentel 
Timour Kamran 

Anissa Taylor 
Mike Tomasetti 

Ugochukwu Opara 
Justin Smith 

Antonio Cerqueira 
Roshan Basil Stanton 

Doris Aldridge 
Leah Apgar 

Erika Rosario 
Dee Dukes 

Sloane Folks 
Nayezge Heyer 

Adam Butler 
J L 

Mara Henao 
Natan Matityahu 

Isaac Badush 
Lauren Kirton 

 

Page 1 of 3  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 21 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 18 of 145 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, July 16, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar. 

 

User Name 

Maya Allen 
Andrew Pierre Saint 

Eloise Young 
Carolina Pena 

Jackie Ball 
David Bullock 

Gary Lucas 
Kylah Smith 

Daren Jin 
Sinoe Naji-Taylor 

Robert Merkle 
Sang Phouansouvanh 

Meredith Boice 
Latisha Krupincza 

Isaac Singleton 
Phu Phun 

Francisco Ángeles 
Tina Taylor 

Maya Dwanah 
Jasmin Rakestraw 

Elaine Thomas 
Khalief Evans 

Autumn Temple 
SPRING GASS 

Bella Victor 
Hermione Daniel 

Pierce Elliott 
Jamier Hughes 

Jasmine Williams 
A Weiss 

Alaysha Tracy 
Karen Gardner Duncan 

Nadirah Brown 
Alma Jordan 
Alisha Davis 

Shania Smith 
Jayden Parks 

Christopher Yasiejko 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 22 of 189



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 19 of 145 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, July 16, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar. 

 

User Name 

Rasheen Bethel 
Jordan Parisse-Ferrarini 

Robyn Savacool 
Li Gao 

Malik Carter 
Anthony Bright Seamless Development 

Jahdai Kilkenny 
Trina Singleton 

Kelly Riley 
Keenan Riley 

12673221298 
12158435555 
16125905030 

 

Page 3 of 3 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 23 of 189



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 20 of 145 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED IN Q&A 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, July 16, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar 

 

# Question Asker Name Answer 

1 

Earlier in the meeting, you mentioned 
unsolicited development proposals carrying 
you over- Can you elaborate on this? 
Additionally what is the difference between 
this and the competitive sales price? 

Jayden Parks 
 

Competitive sales such as a request for 
proposal (rfp) is designed by our office and 
posted publically.  The code allows anyone 
to submit an application (unsolicited) for 
our review.  If the application is qualified it 
moves forward in the approval process.  
Because the affordability level proposed 
meets the requirements for the Turn the 
Key program it is counted as a Turn the 
Project and towards the 1,000 housing 
units. 

2 

If you are rebuilding in the neighborhood with 
an open structure why would it not come 
completed with a finished basement 
considering the cost is in the high $280 
thousands 

Elaine Thomas 
 

Answered live 

3 

Can I Comment? 
 

Juanda Myles 
 

Not at this time on this item. 

4 It's about the overall development of houses. 
Juanda Myles 

 

You can at the end of the of the agenda 
under new or old business. 

5 

How many voting members are required for 
quorum? 

Adam Butler 
 

A majority of the Board - 6 members.  We 
have 9 here now. 

6 

Can anyone direct us to a web page or 
elsewhere where we could access the data 
listing the number of qualified people on the 
waiting list to buy a house through the Turn-
the-Key program, the percentage of city 
workers who have purchased these homes, 
and demographic data such as the 
distribution of the buyers by race/ethnicity, 
and their former zip codes? 

Timour Kamran 
 

You can go to this website for overall 
information.  
https://phdcphila.org/residents-and-
landlords/homebuyers-and-renters/turn-
the-key/ 
Please refer to the Executive Director 
Report in the Board package which 
provides information.  
https://phdcphila.org/who-we-
are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/ 

7 Do you send out link to this recording? Juanda Myles 
 

When we have it it willbe posted on the 
website. 

8 I have another question Adam Butler  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 24 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 21 of 145 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 25 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 22 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 26 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 23 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 27 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 24 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 28 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 25 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 29 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 26 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 30 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 27 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 31 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 28 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 32 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 29 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 33 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 30 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 34 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 31 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 35 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 32 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 36 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 33 of 145 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 37 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 34 of 145 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 38 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 35 of 145 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 39 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 36 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 40 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 37 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 41 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 38 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 42 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 39 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 43 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 40 of 145 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 44 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 41 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 45 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 42 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 46 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 43 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 47 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 44 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 48 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 45 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 49 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 46 of 145 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 50 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 47 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 51 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 48 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 52 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 49 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 53 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 50 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 54 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 51 of 145 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 55 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 52 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 56 of 189



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 53 of 145 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 57 of 189



Exhibit B 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 54 of 145 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 58 of 189



Exhibit B 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 55 of 145 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 59 of 189



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 56 of 145 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024 - 25 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING REORGANIZATION OF STANDING COMMITTEES AND ADOPTING 

CHARTERS FOR FINANCE COMMITTEE AND 

FOR POLICY AND PLANNING COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors (the “Board”) previously approved the 

creation of several standing committees known as the Finance Committee, the Strategic Planning Committee, 

and the Policy Committee; 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to consolidate the Strategic Planning Committee and the Policy 

Committee into one standing committee to be known as the Policy and Planning Committee; 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to adopt the charters for the Finance Committee and for the Policy and 

Planning Committee which are attached hereto as Exhibit A;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The Strategic Planning Committee and the Policy Committee are hereby consolidated into the Policy and 

Planning Committee. 

2. The proposed charters for the Finance Committee and the Policy and Planning Committee attached hereto 

as Exhibit A are hereby adopted.   

3. This Resolution complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Chapter 16-700 of the Philadelphia 

Code and the Bylaws of the Philadelphia Land Bank. 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be necessary 

or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.  The Executive Director or Senior Counsel will notify the 

Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the date of such 

modifications. 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on July 16, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 60 of 189



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 57 of 145 

Exhibit A to Resolution 2024-25 

 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK  

FINANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER  

July 16, 2024 

 

Role  

The Finance Committee (“Committee”) of the Philadelphia Land Bank ( “PLB”) Board of Directors (the 

“Board”) is not authorized to take any official action on behalf of the Board or to render advice as a 

committee.  The Committee shall be responsible for reviewing and discussing with the Board and PLB 

management the financial policies, goals and budgets that support the mission, values, and strategic goals 

of the PLB. The Committee shall also regularly review the financial performance of the PLB compared 

with its goals and the financial implications of major transactions and prograMs. The primary 

responsibilities of the Committee are to: 1) assist the Board with securing and maintaining the PLB’s 

sound financial status; 2) review and discuss with the Board and PLB management, as appropriate, the 

adoption or amendment of financial strategies or policies, as may be presented to the Board for decision; 

and 3) assist in ensuring responsible fiscal practices. 

 

Structure  

Membership on the Committee shall be determined by the Chair of the Board in consultation with the Vice Chair, 

Secretary and Treasurer. 

 

Any Board member may inform the Chair of their interest in serving on the Committee or may recommend 

another Board member to serve on the Committee. 

 

The number of Board members serving on the Committee must always be less than a quorum of the Board, that 

is, no more than five (5) Board members may serve on the Committee.   

 

The Chair shall endeavor, as is reasonably possible, to appoint an equal distribution of Board members appointed 

by the Mayor and Board members appointed by City Council to the Committee. 

 

The Treasurer shall serve as Chairperson of the Finance Committee.   

 

Meetings  

The Committee shall meet at least four times a year (no less than quarterly), or when necessary, at the call 

of the Committee Chair.  Meeting dates and times are to be specified in advance.  Monthly meetings for 

the purpose of preliminary review and discussion regarding resolutions pertaining to financial policies, 

goals, budgets, performance, and major transactions of the PLB, which resolutions are proposed to be 

brought before the full Board, will be scheduled as needed based on the schedule of Board meetings. 

 

A majority of the Committee’s members must be present to hold a Committee meeting.  Members may 

participate by teleconference or similar means. 

 

Authority and Responsibilities  

In furtherance of its mission, the Committee shall:  

- Review and discuss policies that maintain and improve the financial health and integrity of the PLB; 

- Review and discuss the annual operating budget proposed by PLB management; 

- Review and discuss a long-term financial plan for the PLB; 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 61 of 189



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 58 of 145 

- Review and discuss capital expenditures and unbudgeted operating expenditures that exceed 

management’s spending authority, which is $75,000, or as part of a proposed policy determination; 

- Review and discuss the financial aspects of major proposed transactions, new programs and services, as 

well as of proposals to discontinue programs or services, for Board action, as appropriate; 

- Review and discuss proposed expenditures for acquisitions at sheriff’s sales; 

- Keep informed of and monitor the financial performance of the PLB as a whole against approved 

budgets, long-term trends, and industry benchmarks;  

- Review and discuss requiring and monitoring corrective actions to bring the organization into 

compliance with its budget and other financial targets, as appropriate; and 

- Report at least annually to the Board with respect to the activities of the Committee. 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 62 of 189



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 59 of 145 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK  

POLICY AND PLANNING COMMITTEE CHARTER  

July 16, 2024 

 

Role  

The Policy and Planning Committee (“Committee”) of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“PLB”) Board of 

Directors (the “Board”) is not authorized to take any official action on behalf of the Board or to render 

advice as a Committee.  The Committee shall provide oversight and guidance in the development and 

implementation of the PLB’s structure, policies and processes.  The primary responsibilities of the 

Committee are to: 1) assist the Board with developing and maintaining the PLB’s mission, vision, and 

strategic direction, 2) review and discuss the development of the PLB’s policies with PLB management, 

for presentation to the Board, as appropriate, and 3) remain timely informed by PLB management, for the 

purpose of discussion, regarding the adoption or amendment of PLB policies or other PLB action 

involving matters of public policy, as may be presented to the Board for decision.  The Committee may 

include individuals who are not members of the Board. 

 

Structure  

Membership on the Committee shall be determined by the Chair of the Board in consultation with the Vice Chair, 

Secretary and Treasurer. 

 

Any Board member may inform the Chair of their interest in serving on the Committee or may recommend 

another Board member to serve on the Committee. 

 

The number of Board members serving on the Committee must always be less than a quorum of the Board, that 

is, no more than five (5) Board members may serve on the Committee.   

 

The Chair shall endeavor, as is reasonably possible, to appoint an equal distribution of Board members appointed 

by the Mayor and Board members appointed by City Council to the Committee. 

 

The designation of the Committee Chair shall be determined by the Chair of the Board, unless otherwise 

established by the Board. 

 

Meetings  

The Committee shall meet at least four times a year (no less than quarterly), or when necessary, at the call 

of the Committee Chair.  Meeting dates and times are to be specified in advance.  Monthly meetings for 

the purpose of preliminary review of resolutions pertaining to the PLB’s policies, which resolutions are 

proposed to be brought before the full Board, will be scheduled as needed based on the schedule of Board 

meetings. 

 

A majority of the Committee’s members must be present to hold a Committee meeting.  Members may 

participate by teleconference or similar means. 

 

Authority and Responsibilities  

In furtherance of its mission, the Committee shall:  

- Be involved in review and discussion of PLB management’s participation in and contribution to 

the strategic planning process to be conducted by the Department of Planning and Development, 

including the development of a three-year strategic plan with measurable goals, performance 

metrics, and timelines;  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 63 of 189



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for July 16, 2024 Page 60 of 145 

- Review, discuss, and act as a sounding board for PLB management with respect to material policy 

issues affecting the PLB’s interaction with the public, residents, grantees, Council members, the 

Mayor, City agencies, and other third parties;  

- Review and discuss with the PLB management, as appropriate, positions or decisions that the 

PLB might take regarding public policy, legislation, or other areas that would affect the public’s 

perception of the PLB;   

- Review and discuss with PLB management, as appropriate,  the adoption of, or changes to, 

existing policies (but not administrative procedures or management prerogatives), including, but 

not limited to, disposition policies, acquisition policies, procurement policies, and broadly 

applicable policies, as may be presented to the Board for decision;  

- Review and discuss resolutions related to the role of the Committee, for presentation to the Board 

for decision; 

- Assume such other duties as the Board may from time to time delegate, as consistent with the role 

of the Committee;  

- Have the authority to obtain from PLB management, through coordination with the Corporate 

Secretary or CEO, relevant information and reports with respect to the Committee’s areas of 

responsibility that are not exempt from disclosure to the Board members, by court order, state or 

federal law, regulation or privilege; and  

- Report at least annually to the Board with respect to the activities of the Committee. 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for August 13, 2024 Page 64 of 189




